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Addendum No. 4 
Request for Proposal No. 9117-18-7185 

For: Detailed Design, Services During Construction and Post Construction for the 
Fairbank Silverthorn Storm Trunk Sewer System 

Closing:  12:00 Noon (Local Time) on October 5, 2018 
 
Please refer to the above Request for Proposal (RFP) document in your possession and be 
advised of the following: 
 
I. REVISIONS 
 
1. Refer to Section 2.12 SUMMARY OF PROJECT SUBMISSIONS 
 

Table 2-1 Major Project Submissions 
 

Clarification; 
Delete TM-15 – All local sewers, size – slope – construction method as described in the 
RFP and consider it part of "TM-2 – Technical Report and various Technical 
Memorandums (TM-2a, 2b, 2c and so on……" 

 
2. Refer to Section 2.8 GEOTECHNICAL AND HYDROGEOLOGICAL INVESTIGATIONS 

AND REPORTS 
 

As part of the additional advanced geotechnical testing required during the detailed 
design stage, include “NTNU-SINTEF Soil Abrasivity Testing” in order to test and 
analyze the use of proper soil conditioning to reduce wear and torque during the 
tunnelling using the EPB machine and/or other tunneling equipment. Test locations, 
depths and the extent of testing shall be identified by the consultant in the geological and 
hydrological gap analysis report/technical memorandum. Any coordination, analysis, and 
reporting costs shall be included in the respective tender items for Geotechnical and 
Hydrogeological reports. 
 
An item U52 have been added in Table 5-2 

 
 
3. Refer to Section 5.4 PROVISIONAL ALLOWANCES AND UNIT RATE ITEMS 
 

Table 5-2 Unit Price Items during Design 
 

Correction; 
Item U29 (Conduct ground water sampling and laboratory testing etc.) is a Lump Sum 
item. Unit cost column text typo error corrected by deleting "/each". 
 
Change in item quantity; 
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Item U12 (Boreholes greater than 2.5m and less than or equal to 5m depth……), 
quantity is revised from 20 to 25 and item U19 (Install monitoring well up to and including 
5 m depth……), quantity is revised from 20 to 25. 
 
An item U52 have been added in Table 5-2 for testing of Soil Abrasivity.  

 
(Revised Table 5-2 attached) 
 

4. Refer to the Schedule of Event and be advised of the following: 
 
Deadline for Questions (must be in writing): September 21, 2018 at 12:00 noon (local 
Toronto time). No more questions. 
Deadline for issuance of Addenda: revised from September 28, 2018 to October 2, 2018 
at 12:00 noon (local Toronto time) 
Closing Deadline: revised from October 2, 2018 to October 5, 2018 at 12:00 noon (local 
Toronto time) 

 
 
II. QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
 
Q1: In the RFP document Section 3.4.8b, it asks proponents to discuss the 

development of the project workplan. There does not seem to be any other 
references to the workplan in the rest of the document. Can the City clarify that 
the intention is that the proponents are to only discuss how a work plan will be 
developed, and that the work plan itself will be developed by the successful 
bidder in conjunction with the City. Or, are proponents to prepare and include a 
workplan as part of the proposal? 

A1: A high level work plan shall be prepared as a part of the proposal, due to page 
limitations of proposal. 

 
The final project workplan has to be developed by the successful proponent as per 
section A.1L.3.3. The plan shall include further refinement of the consultant's org-chart, 
project management plan, project and stakeholders communications management plan, 
risk management plan, list of stakeholders and stakeholders management plan, 
schedule and budget management plan for the consultant's assignment, schedule and 
budget management plan during construction and other appropriate items. The project 
workplan is a working document and will require update every 6 months.  
 
. 

  
Q2: RFP Section 3.4.7.j indicates that the project team is to include the services of an 

independent certified cost estimator. Is the requirement/intention that the 
independent cost estimator is to provide QA/QC review of the estimates prepared 
by the design consultant(s), or that the independent estimator is to prepare the 
cost estimates themselves? 

A2: The independent cost estimator shall prepare the cost estimate QA/QC review shall be 
completed by the consultant's senior staff having construction experience. 

 
Q3: Per RFP Figure 8 on page 23, what are the qualification requirements for the Inlet 

Control Device and I/I Design Lead? This role does not currently appear in the 
City’s Table 3-2 on RFP Page 60.  

 A3: Preferred Years of Experience for the Inlet Control Device and I/I Design Lead is 10 
years.  
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Q4: For the Time-Task matrix, can the proponent submit separate TTM's for each 

Section of Table 5-1 Upset Limit Cost Breakdown for Base Scope of Work 
Fairbank Silverthorn Storm Trunk Sewer System, and not count within the 50 page 
limit? 

A4: If a single Time Task Matrix (TTM) is not sufficient for Table 5-1, then additional TTMs 
for Table 5-1 are ok. Suggest to limit TTMs to 3 or 4 for Table 5-1. TTM pages are 
excluded from 50 page count limit.  

 
Q5: Referring to Table 2-1, can the City explain the difference between the 

requirements for TM-2 and TM-15? 
A5: See Revision I.1.  
 
Q6: Referring to Table 2-1, can the City provide guidance on the scope of work that 

will be included in TM-19, TM-20, and TM-21. Alternatively, can the City assign an 
allowance for the noted technical memoranda? 

A6: Refer to section 2.6.2.f.j. The scope of 3 additional TMs is not known at this time and it 
can be required to discuss/document any complex issue. For each of the 3 TMs, the 
consultant shall assume similar level of effort as required for 2.6.2.f.c, 2.6.2.f.g and 
2.6.2.f.h.  

 
Q7: Referring to Table 2-1, can the City provide guidance on the scope of work and 

quantity that will be included in "Other Technical Memorandums (each)".  
Alternatively, can the City assign an allowance for the noted technical 
memoranda.? 

A7: See A6 above. 
 
Q8: Can the City clarify the difference between item listed in Table 5-1 Section A: item 

A14 and the items listed in Table 5-1 Section B: B1 to B6? 
A8: Item A14 is for ICD Pilot Test which involves ICD installation in a small area. Peer review 

has identified a few areas with approximately 35 to 58 catch basins (CBs) for ICD Pilot 
Test. Also, see section 2.2.1.b.bb for more information. Section B: B1 to B6 involves 
implementation of all remaining ICDs. Also, see section 7.2.3.j for more information 
which indicates EA recommended installing 526 ICDs. Pilot test is to install a small 
number of ICDs so that the design team is confident with proceeding with installation of 
all remaining ICDs. Also the pilot test will provide an opportunity to operations staff to 
initiate their operations and maintenance plan and be prepared to work with all ICDs.  

  
Q9: Should Table 3.-2 include the Hydraulic Design Lead as shown in Figure 8? 
A9: Consider Hydraulic Modelling Lead in Table 3-2 as the same person indicated as 

Hydraulic Design Lead in Figure-8 
  
Q10: Is there a difference between the Hydraulic Design Lead as shown Figure 8 and 

the Hydraulic Modelling Lead listed in Table 3-2? Can the team propose different 
specialists for each role? 

A10: See A9. Each design lead shall have other expertize staff required for the project 
component. 

  
Q11: Is the Hydraulic Modelling Lead a support to the Hydraulic Design Lead? 
A11: See A9. Each design lead shall have other expertize staff required for the project 

component.  
 
Q12: Referring to Table 3-2 Geotechnical and Hydrogeological Lead. Can the team 

propose different specialists for each role? 
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A12: The City will accept two leads instead of one. Fifteen (15) years of relevant experience is 
preferred for each of the 2 positions. 

 
Q13: Referring to Addendum No.2 Q28, can the City clarify if all watermain laterals are 

to be replaced in locations where only new storm sewers are proposed to be 
constructed, including those laterals that are not substandard? 

A13: Refer to A28 of Addendum 2 dated September 6, 2018. For further clarity, substandard 
water services shall be replaced where the new or replacement storm/sanitary sewer 
construction is proposed by an open cut excavation, and also near the construction 
shafts. The water services which are already standard, will not be replaced. Only the 
substandard water services will be replaced. As indicated in Table 5-1, Item C1, for 
estimating design quantity, consider 100% replacement and the payment will be 
prorated based on design submission for the actual number of services determined as 
substandard during detailed design.  

 
Q14: Section 2.2.1.A indicates up to 4 construction tenders. Section 2.8.3 indicates 

GDR, GBR and HydroG reports for each tender. Table 2-1 indicates GBR are 
required for 3 major tenders. Table 5-1 section E says local storm sewer work and 
other ancillary work will be delivered through 2 or 3 construction tenders. Please 
clarify whether we are to price for 3 or 4 tenders. 

A14: For GDR, GBR and Hydrogeological reports, price for 4 tenders. These reports have to 
be packaged depending on the construction work packages.  

 
Q15: Table 5-2 item U31 refers to a pumping test, slug test, and any other tests. Can the 

City provide guidance on the location, the type, and number of tests required for 
this item?  Alternatively, can the City assign a provisional allowance for this item? 

A15: The existing geotechnical, hydrogeological information, and the peer review 
recommendation is included with the RFP. The Consultant shall review the existing 
information, complete gap analysis, install any additional monitoring wells and complete 
the work indicated in item U31 of Table 5-2. No separate provisional allowance shall be 
assigned. 

 
Q16: Table 5-2, Item U30 – based on review of the EA, the majority of the project area is 

located within areas that are only serviced by combined (storm and sanitary) 
sewers.  For the purposes of costing out the unit rate for groundwater sampling, 
would the City like us to include laboratory analysis for the cost for the complete 
list of parameters listed in the City of Toronto New Sewer Use By-Law 457-2000 
(Chapter 681 of the Municipal Code) in order to determine groundwater treatment 
requirements and discharge location during construction (i.e. municipal sanitary, 
combined or storm sewer) or just the parameters listed in the combined storm and 
sanitary sewer list of parameters. 

A16: Depending on dewatering location, dewatering discharge can be either in sanitary, 
combined, storm or Black Creek water course. Combined sewers already have no 
additional to limited capacity during a storm event. Hence all options shall be reviewed to 
temporarily store, discharge and dispose dewatering water. The consultant shall 
determine adequate water sampling and laboratory analysis to ensure the information 
available is sufficient to discharge to any of the receiving sewers and the water course 
including to specify the type of treatment required for the dewatering water. The 
information collected should be sufficient to attain municipal and other regulatory 
approvals, such as City of Toronto Discharge Permit or Permit to Take Water from the 
MOECC. Refer to section 2.8.21, A.2L.1.5, and other related sections of RFP. 

 
Q17: Table 5-2, Item U31. The need for pumping tests, slug tests and any other tests.  It 

is implied that slug tests are to be completed as part of Items U19 to U24 to 
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estimate the hydraulic conductivity of the subsurface conditions.  Based on the 
findings of the hydrogeological investigation (in-situ hydraulic conductivity 
testing, estimates of dewatering rates, and zone of influence related to the 
proposed dewatering), the need for a pumping test may not be required. For the 
purposes of establishing a basis for fair and equitable bids, we request that the 
City indicate the number of pumping tests and slug tests to completed in order to 
prepare the lump sum cost. 

A17: The existing geotechnical, hydrogeological information, and the peer review 
recommendation is included with the RFP. The Consultant shall review the existing 
information, complete gap analysis, install any additional monitoring wells and complete 
the adequate testing indicated in the RFP. It is consultant's responsibility to complete all 
necessary tests required to accurately estimate expected dewatering volumes. This 
responsibility will not be transferred to the contractor. Also, estimating a very high 
volume for dewatering water volume due to lack of proper tests will not be permitted. 
Assume reasonable number of pump tests based on information provided. 

 
Q18: In relation to settlement monitoring requirements, does the City have specific 

requirements related to where the monitoring is to be performed, the frequency of 
monitoring as well action limit requirements relative to ground or groundwater 
movements?  This question is related to actual placement requirements, 
frequency of measurement, specific types of structures to be monitored, and any 
City specific action limits. 

A18: City is not expecting the consultant to complete settlement monitoring during design, 
construction or post construction. However, based on the zone of influence established 
by the consultant, soil type, anticipated vibration, dewatering and anticipated ground loss 
due to tunneling and other construction activity anticipate impact to properties and road, 
the consultant shall specify the number of monitoring points for each construction 
contract as per below: 

 
1. Ground Settlement Markers 
2. Establish benchmarks 
3. Utility Monitoring Points for critical utilities  
4. Structure Settlement Markers including Metrolinx Rail Tracks and sub-base, all 

permanent and temporary easement properties, all other properties that can have 
settlement related issues due to significant vibration and differential settlement, all 
bridges and other critical structures. 

 
The consultant shall prepare a detail specification for the installation of each type of 
marker and identify general location of marker and specify monitoring frequency for the 
contractor. Monitoring frequency will be higher when the construction activity is occurring 
and lower after construction completion and no ground settlement observed for at least 1 
month. Monitoring shall be completed by the contractor and the consultant is responsible 
to review the results and advise the contractor and the City. The consultant shall include 
in their specification decommissioning of markers and any restoration required. 
However, some of the markers will remain for a duration from 2 to up to 5 years duration 
after the construction and the contractor will have to provide monitoring services during 
post construction. Settlement monitoring shall comply with best practises. The 
consultant's role is to review the settlement monitoring reports and advise City and the 
Contractor of potential issues and provide claims related services.  The consultant shall 
include in the specification removal of all markers and restoration after 2 to 5 years 
warranty period.  

 
For vibration and noise the consultant is responsible to complete base line noise and 
vibration study during design for the entire construction site and ensure mitigation 
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measures are in place in construction specifications to reduce the impact of noise, 
vibration and differential settlement. During construction noise and vibration monitoring 
shall be completed by the contractor and the consultant is responsible to review the 
results and advise the contractor and the City. 

 
Settlement monitoring must commence prior to construction activity within the zone of 
influence.  

 
Based on the soil condition, type of construction methodology anticipated, type of 
tunneling & micro-tunneling machines that will be specified in the contract, the consultant 
has to determine the zone of influence for all tunneling, micro-tunneling, shaft 
construction and major open cut construction. The consultant shall also review technical 
memorandum prepared by AECOM for vibration and noise assessment. The scope for 
the consultant includes providing structural enhancements due to significant 
vibration/differential settlement anticipated for up to 6 properties. AECOM has identified 
4 properties, and additional 2 are recommended by the City. Construction of structural 
enhancements can be included in one of the construction contracts.  

 
Q19: Item 2.2.1.b.bb for the ICD Pilot indicates that there needs to be flow monitoring 

completed at five locations for one year. In Addendum No. 2, Table 5-2, Item U41 is 
a unit price item for flow monitoring at 15 locations for a one year period. Please 
confirm if the Flow Monitoring described in Item 2.2.1.b.bb is to be priced under 
item Item U41, or if it is to be included in the base scope of work. 

A19: Cost of flow monitoring described in 2.2.1.b.bb shall be included in item A14. The U41 is 
to determine I/I, troubleshooting etc.  

 
Q20: Per A.4L.4.3, can the City please confirm that pre-condition surveys should be 

costed based on the proposed tunnel alignment only? 
A20: For all properties where the City will be requesting permanent easements and for up to 6 

(4 identified by AECOM and 2 additional) properties identified as having severe impact, 
the consultant shall complete their separate pre-condition survey and involve their 
structural engineer and provide a report to the City. The consultant shall also design 
structural enhancements for these structures and coordinate with residents. Construction 
for these enhancements can be planned through one of the planned construction tender. 
 
Moreover, for their liability, the Consultant shall complete the pre-condition survey of 
existing properties, facilities and structures within and immediately adjacent to the 
project limits which are impacted by their field activity, such as drilling boreholes, digging 
test pits, or data collection from the easement properties. This will include the tunnel 
alignment, local storm sewers, and any other location impacted by consultant activity. 
The Consultant shall prepare detailed specifications for the tender documents for the 
detailed pre-condition survey for every property for the entire project to be completed by 
the contractor/s and reviewed by the Consultant. 

 
 During construction, the contractor will be responsible for pre-construction survey and 

the contract administrator shall coordinate the pre-construction survey activities.  
 
Q21: Under the scope of work (Item 2.2.1 b.w) [pg 14] there are a number of services 

requested of the noise and vibration specialist.  Many of these services correlate 
to the line items in Tables D, E, and G in the costing section.  However, it is 
unclear if the City intends that the support associated with the; ‘Development of 
the Mitigation Plan’ and ‘Development of Tender Specifications’ be included in the 
costs associated with Row G6 and G13 for the ‘Trunk’ and ‘Local Infrastructure’ 
respectively, or if these are to be included in the ‘pre-construction’ support 
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covered in Row D12 and E12 for the ‘Trunk’ and ‘Local Infrastructure’ 
respectively.  Can the City please clarify? 

A21: Services expected during design shall be included in items from A to E. F and G are for 
services expected during construction.  
 
'Development of the Mitigation Plan’ and ‘Development of Tender Specifications’ are 
expected during design. Hence, can be included in D12 and E12.   

 
Q22: In regards to items U25 and U29, it is not clear how many existing monitoring 

wells are to be included in the base scope of the program.  AECOM’s assessment 
identified 25 out of the possible 64 groundwater monitoring locations 
(piezometers, monitoring wells and pumping wells).  However, the AECOM 
assessment also indicated that 23 were not found.  It is noted that the AECOM well 
assessment was completed between November 2017 and January 2018, when the 
road and ground surfaces were snow covered.  For the purposes of equitable 
bidding, please confirm the number of groundwater monitors to be assumed for 
the lump sum cost. Is it the full 64 locations, or possibly 27 (25 well locations + 2 
multilevel monitors located by AECOM)? 

A22: Consider 56 locations, i.e. exclude 8 locations which have been indicated as unsuitable 
for future use. However, decommissioning of the wells which are unsuitable for future 
use will still be required by an MOECC-licensed well contractor in accordance with 
O.Reg. 903. and must be included in one of the construction contracts. 

 
Q23: RFP Section A.2L.1.5. (23) refers to “pervious storm sewers” and includes a 

requirement for infiltration testing for them. Can the City clarify where these are? 
A23: Refer to RFP documentation. As the design progresses, if any pervious storm sewer 

system is discovered in the project area, infiltration testing will be required per 
A.2L.1.5.23. The payment will be per unit price item for installing monitoring well for the 
respective depth. 

 
Q24: There is also a requirement for infiltration testing related to determining suitability 

for pervious catch basins as stated in RFP Section A.2L.1.5., Item (30). Can the 
City clarify the applicability of sub-items (30)(a) and (30)(b) as they refer to testing 
of different depth increments in borings and sub-item (a) refers to testing within 
separate boreholes whereas sub-item (b) appears to refer to testing within 
geotechnical boreholes? 

A24: Section A.2L.1.5.30.a and A.2L.1.5.30.b, both are applicable. If testing is done by drilling 
separate boreholes, they will be treated as separate monitoring wells for payment 
purpose. 

 
Q25: Can the City clarify which pay items cover the costs for testing identified in RFP 

Sections A.2L.1.5 (23), (30)(a) and (30)(b)? 
A25: See A23 and A24. 
 
Q26: Item U29 in Table 5-2 requires that we conduct groundwater sampling and lab 

analysis for existing wells constructed during the EA and PDR. Under the # of 
Units column the table states “LS” but under the Unit Cost column it states 
“$___/Each”. It is unclear if this is meant to be a lump sum item or a unit rate item. 
It would be more logical for this to be included as a unit rate item, as it is likely 
that all the existing wells will not need to be sampled and tested and a decision on 
which existing wells to be sampled and tested could be made during the 
execution of the project. Could this item be included as a unit rate item? 

A26: See Revision I.3. Also, see A22. 
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Q27: Revision I.3 in Addendum #3 adds the “testing of aggressiveness and corrosivity 
potential of soil samples” to the geotechnical scope of work. Can the City please 
add a corresponding unit price line item in Table 5-2 for this testing? 

A27: Payment for testing of aggressiveness and corrosivity potential of soil samples shall be 
considered part of bore hole unit price items U11 to U18. Separate unit price item is not 
required. 

 
Q28: Can the City please confirm that it is acceptable to present Table 3-1, Table 3-2, 

the summary table, schedule and time-task breakdown on 11x17?  
a) Can these tables be omitted from the page count?  
b) Alternatively, would it be acceptable to include these items in the appendices of 
the proposal?  

A28: It is acceptable to present Table 3-1, Table 3-2, the summary table, schedule and time-
task breakdown on 11x17 and these shall be omitted from the page count limit. 

 
Q29: This question is a follow up to Addendum 2, Q3/A3. Reviewing the Pre-design 

Model and the AECOM 20 L/s ICD model there are areas where additional control 
is required beyond the works identified in the PDR. We are requesting the 
following clarifications:  
a) How is the City going to ensure that each proponent has a similar quantification 
of potential additional work (I/I, CCTV, and potentially Design and supporting 
investigations)? 

 
A29: Refer to section 2.2.1.f and A3 Addendum 2 dated September 6, 2018. AECOM has 

completed modeling with 20 L/s capture rate for ICDs, instead of EA modeling with 10 
L/s capture rate for ICDs. Streets/areas where surcharging exceeds 1.8 m are already 
identified in the model and the report provided to all proponents. Hence the streets and 
km length is known. The consultant is responsible to identify solution for these areas and 
it can be I/I improvements or new infrastructure. Dye test, smoke test and flow 
monitoring to identify I/I are unit rate items. Toronto Water can provide CCTV or help 
conduct CCTV. If I/I cannot be addressed or if there is significant issue, the consultant 
will have to either upsize the combined or provide separate storm sewer for surface flow. 
Sufficient information is provided to estimate this effort.  

 
Q30: Page 23 of the RFP states that the Storm Collection Design Lead minimum service 

level = 4 hours x 36 months. Can the City confirm that this is 4 hours per day x 36 
months. 

A30: This is 4 hours per day x 36 months. 
 
Q31: In regards to the Bench test of ICD, RFP 2.2.1 b. aa): How are types of lids 

expected to be fabricated and modelled? How many types of ICDs are expected to 
be fabricated and modelled? 

A31: Refer to section 2.2.1.b.aa and A1, A2, A4 of Addendum 2 dated September 6, 2018 for 
scope. The lids shall be standard off the shelf. ICD is only orifice style. The consultant 
shall complete the bench test for additional runs for up to three style lids used in the area 
or recommended and for various depth of catchbasins as suggested in the previous 
Addendum No. 2.  

 
Q32: The RFP mentions sediment management and make brief reference to sediment 

transport modelling.  According to AECOM TR:3 Hydrologic/Hydraulic Model and 
Hydraulic Transient Analysis, Section 5.3 the conclusion is sediment 
accumulation is relatively small with an accumulation of 2 to 5.3 cm over 4 years.  
Can the City provide more detail on the scope of the sediment transport modelling 
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required?  Will the City provide the current sediment transport model prepared by 
AECOM? 

A32: Solids settlement and transport modelling is referred in detailed design section 2.7.37.c 
and TM-11 (Table 2-1 Major Project Submissions). Sediment transport model prepared 
by AECOM will be provided to the successful consultant. Validate assumptions in 
modeling including solids found in surface water and ensure model is accurate. Based 
on the design progress and changes, it is important to confirm sediment transport model 
for as-built model system. Consultant shall also recommend cleaning, cleaning 
frequency and make essential design arrangements for cleaning the storm sewer if 
required. 

 
Q33: ICDs – Can the City confirm that each CB recommended for an ICD (526 according 

to TR3) needs to be surveyed for grate elevation, invert, dimensions and curb 
height.   

A33: Each CB recommended for an ICD needs to be surveyed in detail such as collecting the 
data for grate elevation, invert, outlet location, size, material, structural condition, 
dimensions and curb height etc. The actual number of CBS for ICD installation shall be 
determined by the consultant after bench test, pilot test and completion of modelling 
which may be slightly more or less than 526 indicated in TR3. 

 
Q34: ICDs – Can the City confirm that there may be additional ICD locations following 

the ICD testing and model update? 
A34: See A33. It may be prudent to assume at this point that there may be slightly more or 

less ICD locations following the ICD bench testing and curve development exercise and 
associated model update. However, the ICD sizing can be determined through the 
bench test to ensure there is no significant change in the number of ICDs  

 
Q35: The RFP identified (pdf page 28): 

But also says (pdf page 96): 
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The first clause appears to contradict with items a., b., e., and attendance tracking 
noted in item f., in the second clause. Could the City please provide some clarity 
on which items the Consultant shall be responsible for and which the PCU will be 
responsible for completing? 

A35: Consultant responsibilities indicated in section 6.2 are base scope. Any work from 
section 2.3.5.j, if requiring use of provisional allowance will be only applicable if pre-
approved by the City. 

 
Q36: Please confirm that the RFP Item 2.2.1.e.e reference to surveying reverse slope 

driveways is only intended for locating reverse slope driveways in the area where 
ICDs are proposed and that no elevation of reverse slope driveways is required. 
We note that the bottom elevation of reverse slope driveways is on private 
property and isn’t required to complete the modeling or design activities. Curb 
elevation will provide the required information for the project. 

A36: The model predicts that when there is a reverse slope driveway the surface storage 
does not exceed 150 mm. It is important to confirm that when 150mm surface storage 
occurs on the road, how it will impact the home with a reverse slope driveway. If the 
surface water drains to this driveway, it is important to notify the home owner to build a 
berm in the driveway to mitigate the issue. The consultant need to confirm surface water 
build up at 100 year and highest elevation of the reversed slope drive way and maintain 
a database of surface water build up vs highest elevation of the reversed slope driveway 
and discuss mitigation measures with the City, which may include adding a catchbasin if 
capacity permits or advising the home owner to construct a berm on the driveway etc.  

 
Q37: The RFP details the geotechnical and hydrogeological services required for the 

design phases of the project, however there is no mention of services during the 
construction contracts. We respectfully request that the City consider including a 
provisional allowance for geotechnical and hydrogeotechnical services during the 
construction phase in Table 5-4 A & B should those services be required during 
one of the construction contracts. 
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A37: Including a provisional allowance for geotechnical and hydrogeological services during 
the construction phase in Table 5-4 A & B is not required. The design services PO may 
be kept open during construction and unutilized unit rate items for the geotech and 
hydrog services may be used if required.  

 
Q38: Can the City confirm that the electrical design sub-consultants for the temporary 

and permanent streetlight design scope (if needed) needs to be pre-approved by 
Toronto Hydro? Can the City provide a list of pre-approved street lighting design 
consultants from Toronto Hydro? 

A38: The electrical design for the temporary and permanent streetlight design scope (if 
needed) needs to be pre-approved by Toronto Hydro. As the street lighting is owned and 
maintained by Toronto Hydro, contact Toronto Hydro for the list of pre-approved street 
lighting design consultants.   

 
Also, note the following categories of electrical work on City streets can be completed by 
only pre-qualified electrical contractors. Present Electrical Items pre-qualified electrical 
contractors for City streets are; 

 
A. Electrical Traffic Control Devices 

 
 Tristar Electric Inc. 
 Beacon Utility Contractors Limited  
 Black & McDonald Ltd. 
 Fellmore Electrical Contractors Limited 
 Guild Electric Limited 
 TM3 Inc. 
 Weinmann Limited 

 
B. Electrical Management Devices 

 
 Tristar Electric Inc. 
 Black & McDonald Ltd. 
 Guild Electric Limited 
 Weinmann Limited 

 
Above list may change in future.  

 
Q39: Can the City confirm that construction along Eglinton Avenue will be complete in 

advance of the project, and that it is acceptable to use open cut methods shortly 
after the re-opening of the road? Can the City provide the latest approved signal 
design drawings and road / civil drawings for Eglinton Avenue West and 
Caledonia? 

A39: Consultant has to review construction method for each open cut excavation proposed. 
Eglinton local storm may be constructed through micro-tunneling to minimize traffic 
impact and road restoration. The consultant will coordinate the design and construction 
with other ongoing projects. Approvals from other agencies and departments such as 
Transportation Services will be required. Enhanced restoration such as complete 
resurfacing of the entire impacted road block, may be required if open cut construction 
cannot be avoided on a road which is under moratorium. The City will facilitate the 
consultant to attain the latest approved signal design drawings and road/civil drawings 
for Eglinton Avenue West and Caledonia if required for sewer design work. 

 
Q40: The RFP describes a potential need for re-surfacing or re-construction of roads 

that are in poor condition. Can the City advise as to the extents of re-surfacing or 
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re-construction that are expected, i.e. percentage of overall work, so that bidders 
can price the design on an equivalent basis? 

A40: Permanent restoration of all utility cuts and excavations is base scope. In addition, 
consider up to 4 km of complete road resurfacing work as base scope including 
sidewalks/curbs/boulevard repairs for any of the roads within the area where the sewers 
will be installed by an open cut as indicated in the Predesign Report. Specific road and 
scope will be decided in consultation with the Transportation Services during the course 
of the design. Any additional complete road resurfacing or reconstruction on which the 
sewer work is not done or is completed by trenchless method and City decides to 
include it with the sewer work based on road condition,  shall be considered from the 
provisional allowance item 11, Table 5-4 A. 

 
Q41: Referring to Table 5-1, can the City clarify the scope of work and differences 

between item G9, and item G16? 
A41: As indicated in Table 5-1, Item G9 is for Main Tunnel Tender (Main Tunnel, Outfall and 

Watercourse/Channel erosion control) and Item G16 is for remaining Construction 
TENDERs (Local Storm Sewers, ancillary work and Transportation Services 
Component). 

 
Q42: Referring to Table 5-1, can the City confirm that the services during construction 

in Section F include the scope of work for both the Detail Design of Section B - 
ICD Tender, Critical Utility Relocation and I/I Study/Improvements and Section C - 
Miscellaneous Other Designs? 

A42: Most of the water services upgrades shall be constructed under local storm sewer 
tenders. Some I/I improvements and utility relocations may be constructed with ICD 
tender, and some may be constructed with local storm sewer tenders or main tunnel 
tender. It depends on proximity, similarity in scope etc.   

 
Q43: In Table 5-3, below Unit item U105, there is an item that is identified as “QA 

Cores”, but the number of units is not specified. Can the City confirm the quantity 
and the description of the Item? 

A43: See Revision I.1 Addendum 3 dated September 17, 2018. 
 
Q44: Item 2.2.1.bb on Page 15: Please confirm that the distribution of public 

consultation material will be limited to the ICD Pilot catchment area. 
A44: The public consultation material related to the ICD Pilot shall be distributed to the ICD 

Pilot catchment area, minimum of 5 houses on each side of street beyond the catchment 
area on each side of catchment area, and in the downstream area impacted by ICD 
Pilot. 

 
Q45: Item 2.2.1.h and 2.2.1.f on Pages 13 and 17: There are two references to ‘(Review 

I&I Scope)’. Please confirm the Scope of Work Section number that this 
references. 

A45: Sections 2.2.1.h and 2.2.1.f, both are applicable. Also see other sections such as 
2.2.1.b.o, 2.2.1.g.c, and 2.6.2.f.f. I & I issues include but are not limited to perforated 
maintenance hole covers, damaged joints, sewer defects, cross connections, and 
downspouts and other private side I/I sources. 

 
Q46: Item U25 in Costing Table 5-2 references “existing water wells” that are to have 

groundwater samples collected and monitored for up to 6 months. Please clarify 
whether “existing water wells” means the three test wells that were installed for 
pumping tests or if it means all monitoring wells. 

A46: See A22. 
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Q47: As part of the additional advanced geotechnical testing required during the 
detailed design stage, can the City consider adding a unit rate for, “NTNU-SINTEF 
Soil Abrasivity Testing” as Item U52 in order to test and analyze the use of proper 
soil conditioning to reduce wear and torque during the tunnelling using the EPB 
machine? Can the study specify the number of tests? We believe an estimated 
quantity of 10 may be sufficient. 

A47: See Revision I.2 and I.3. An item U52 have been added in Table 5-2 for testing of Soil 
Abrasivity. 

 
Q48: It appears that in many areas the Basement Flooding guidelines cannot be met. 

Can we assume that the City has accepted the deviations from the guidelines and 
no remodeling, and potentially redesign is required? 

A48: The core basement flooding criteria of 150 mm surface storage (where reverse slope 
driveways), 300 mm surface storage (where no reverse slope driveways), 1.8 m or less 
surcharge should be met. . Additional I/I solutions, upsizing of suggested local sewers, 
confirmation of curb and reverse sloped driveway highest elevation and additional 
separation may be required as discussed in this addendum. The issues identified have 
to be addressed. 

 
Q49: In the RFP, Section 5, Clause 5.2.7, page 75, would the City consider rate 

escalation tied into the Canada Construction Cost Index (Toronto/GTA) beyond 
the design phase of the project (starting year 2022). This will make the fee 
estimates from all consultants similar. 

A49: As indicated in section 5.2.7. City strongly recommends the consultant must prepare 
financial proposal with built-in escalation. The total upset limit shall include such 
escalations. Any further rate adjustment shall not be considered during the entire tenure 
of the project including for sub-consultants. 

 
Q50: AECOM revised the PD model by changing the inlet capacity of the ICDs. In 

addition, the bench testing may also result in changes to the inlet capacity of the 
ICDs. These potential changes may result in unscoped design changes. Will the 
City consider an allowance to address these potential design changes? 

A50: See A29. Moreover, the ICD bench test shall confirm if the curve currently used in the 
model is accurate. The ICD parameters can be designed to achieve a curve which is 
close to model. There may be some changes in the number of total ICDs.  

 
Q51: It is important that a thorough review and assessment of the significant body of 

background information included in the RFP be carried out to develop a 
comprehensive proposal and fee estimate from the consultant team including 
subconsultants, accordingly can the City extend the closing date by two weeks? 

A51: See Revision I.4. 
 
Q52: Upon reviewing the RFP, the considerable amount of background information and 

the complexity of the assignment, along with other active RFPs issued by the City, 
we request the Closing date be extend by 4-weeks to October 24, 2018.  We also 
request that the question period be extended 1-week to September 25, 2018. 

A52: See Revision I.4. 
 
Q53: As a follow-up to the four (4) week extension request, would the City also consider 

a two (2) week extension to the question deadline? 
A53: See Revision I.4. 
 
Q54: Due to complexity of project, we need to request for an extension of tender for two 

weeks. 
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Table 5-2 
Unit Price Items During Design 
Revised Addendum No. 4 (September 26, 2018) 
 
 

Items 
# of 
Units 
(A) 

Unit Cost 
(B) 

Cost ($) 
(AxB) 

 Detailed Design 
 

Geotechnical Investigation – Asphaltic Concrete Tests 

U1 Asbestos Analysis including the complete preparation and 
analysis, such as extraction of washed samples, laboratory 
tests, including all associated expenses (O. Reg. 278.05) 

300 $______/Each $ 

U2 Coring samples from asphalt flexible pavement or concrete 
composite pavement for asbestos investigation and analysis, 
and backfill core holes with hot mix asphalt and compact with 
hand held Marshall Compaction hammer. 

200 $______/Each $ 

 Geotechnical and HydroG  investigations    
U11 Boreholes with less than or equal to 2.5m depth, including 

investigations as per section 2.8.12 and 2.8.13 and specified 
in Appendix A.2L.1.4. Cost shall include all permits, traffic 
control, disposal and restoration cost. Cost to include all soil 
investigation, testing and analysis. All investigations shall be 
detailed to prepare a high quality geotechnical, 
hydrogeological and GBR report and to mitigate soils disposal 
risk during construction. Consultant shall identify additional 
required test and payment will be made through unit rates and 
provisional allowances 

15 $______/Each  

U12 Boreholes greater than 2.5m and less than or equal to 5m 
depth, including investigations as per section 2.8.12 and 
2.8.13 and specified in Appendix A.2L.1.4. Cost to include all 
soil investigation, testing and analysis. Cost shall include all 
permits, traffic control, disposal and restoration cost.  All 
investigations shall be detailed to prepare a high quality 
geotechnical, hydrogeological and GBR report and to mitigate 
soils disposal risk during construction. Consultant shall identify 
additional required test and payment will be made through unit 
rates and provisional allowances 

25 $______/Each $ 

U13 Boreholes greater than 5m and less than or equal to 10m 
depth, including investigations as per section 2.8.12 and 
2.8.13 and specified in Appendix A.2L.1.4. Cost to include all 
soil investigation, testing and analysis. Cost shall include all 
permits, traffic control, disposal and restoration cost.  All 
investigations shall be detailed to prepare a high quality 
geotechnical, hydrogeological and GBR report and to mitigate 
soils disposal risk during construction. Consultant shall identify 
additional required test and payment will be made through unit 
rates and provisional allowances 

35 $______/Each $ 

U14 Boreholes greater than 10m and less than or equal to 15m 
depth, including investigations as per section 2.8.12 and 
2.8.13 and specified in Appendix A.2L.1.4. Cost to include all 
soil investigation, testing and analysis. Cost shall include all 
permits, traffic control, disposal and restoration cost.  All 
investigations shall be detailed to prepare a high quality 
geotechnical, hydrogeological and GBR report and to mitigate 
soils disposal risk during construction. Consultant shall identify 
additional required test and payment will be made through unit 
rates and provisional allowances 

20 $______/Each $ 

U15 Boreholes greater than 15m and less than or equal to 20m 
depth, including investigations as per section 2.8.12 and 
2.8.13 and specified in Appendix A.2L.1.4. Cost to include all 
soil investigation, testing and analysis. Cost shall include all 
permits, traffic control, disposal and restoration cost.  All 
investigations shall be detailed to prepare a high quality 

15 $______/Each $ 
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Items 

# of 
Units 
(A) 

Unit Cost 
(B) 

Cost ($) 
(AxB) 

geotechnical, hydrogeological and GBR report and to mitigate 
soils disposal risk during construction. Consultant shall identify 
additional required test and payment will be made through unit 
rates and provisional allowances 

U16 Boreholes greater than 20m and less than or equal to 30m 
depth, including investigations as per section 2.8.12 and 
2.8.13 and specified in Appendix A.2L.1.4. Cost to include all 
soil investigation, testing and analysis. Cost shall include all 
permits, traffic control, disposal and restoration cost.  All 
investigations shall be detailed to prepare a high quality 
geotechnical, hydrogeological and GBR report and to mitigate 
soils disposal risk during construction. Consultant shall identify 
additional required test and payment will be made through unit 
rates and provisional allowances 

10 $______/Each $ 

U17 Boreholes greater than 30m and less than or equal to 40m 
depth, including investigations as per section 2.8.12 and 
2.8.13 and specified in Appendix A.2L.1.4. Cost to include all 
soil investigation, testing and analysis. Cost shall include all 
permits, traffic control, disposal and restoration cost.  All 
investigations shall be detailed to prepare a high quality 
geotechnical, hydrogeological and GBR report and to mitigate 
soils disposal risk during construction. Consultant shall identify 
additional required test and payment will be made through unit 
rates and provisional allowances. 

10 $______/Each $ 

U18 Boreholes greater than 40m and less than or equal to 55m 
depth, including investigations as per section 2.8.12 and 
2.8.13 and specified in Appendix A.2L.1.4. Cost to include all 
soil investigation, testing and analysis. Cost shall include all 
permits, traffic control, disposal and restoration cost.  All 
investigations shall be detailed to prepare a high quality 
geotechnical, hydrogeological and GBR report and to mitigate 
soils disposal risk during construction. Consultant shall identify 
additional required test and payment will be made through unit 
rates and provisional allowances prepare a high quality 
geotechnical, hydrogeological and GBR report and to mitigate 
soils disposal risk during construction. Record t water 
pressure. 

8 $______/Each $ 

U19 Install monitoring well up to  and including 5 m depth, install 
instrumentation to accurately measure well level, complete 
level monitoring once a month for up to a duration of 6 
months, secure the well so that contractor can monitor level 
during construction. Take water sample and complete analysis 
through unit rate items. Measure water pressure. Complete 
infiltration tests. Cost shall include all permits, traffic control, 
and any restoration cost. All investigations shall be detailed to 
prepare a high quality geotechnical, hydrogeological and GBR 
report and to mitigate water disposal and construction risks.  

25 $______/Each $ 

U20 Install monitoring well greater than 5m depth and less than or 
equal to 10m depth, install instrumentation to accurately 
measure well level, complete level monitoring once a month 
for up to a duration of 6 months, secure the well so that 
contractor can monitor level during construction. Take water 
sample and complete analysis through unit rate items. 
Measure water pressure. Complete infiltration tests. Cost shall 
include all permits, traffic control, and any restoration cost. All 
investigations shall be detailed to prepare a high quality 
geotechnical, hydrogeological and GBR report and to mitigate 
water disposal and construction risks. 

20 $______/Each $ 

U21 Install monitoring well greater than 10m depth and less than or 
equal to 20m depth, install instrumentation to accurately 
measure well level, complete level monitoring once a month 
for up to a duration of 6 months, secure the well so that 

20 
 

$______/Each $ 
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Items 

# of 
Units 
(A) 

Unit Cost 
(B) 

Cost ($) 
(AxB) 

contractor can monitor level during construction. Take water 
sample and complete analysis through unit rate items. 
Measure water pressure. Complete infiltration tests. Cost shall 
include all permits, traffic control, and any restoration cost. All 
investigations shall be detailed to prepare a high quality 
geotechnical, hydrogeological and GBR report and to mitigate 
water disposal and construction risks. 

U22 Install monitoring well greater than 20m depth and less than or 
equal to 30m depth, install instrumentation to accurately 
measure well level, complete level monitoring once a month 
for up to a duration of 6 months, secure the well so that 
contractor can monitor level during construction. Take water 
sample and complete analysis through unit rate items. 
Measure water pressure. Complete infiltration tests. Cost shall 
include all permits, traffic control, and any restoration cost. All 
investigations shall be detailed to prepare a high quality 
geotechnical, hydrogeological and GBR report and to mitigate 
water disposal and construction risks. 

12 $______/Each $ 

U23 Install monitoring well greater than 30m depth and less than or 
equal to 40m depth, install instrumentation to accurately 
measure well level, complete level monitoring once a month 
for up to a duration of 6 months, secure the well so that 
contractor can monitor level during construction. Take water 
sample and complete analysis through unit rate items. 
Measure water pressure. Complete infiltration tests. Cost shall 
include all permits, traffic control, and any restoration cost. All 
investigations shall be detailed to prepare a high quality 
geotechnical, hydrogeological and GBR report and to mitigate 
water disposal and construction risks. 

8 $______/Each $ 

U24 Install monitoring well greater than 40m depth and less than or 
equal to 55m depth, install instrumentation to accurately 
measure well level, complete level monitoring once a month 
for up to a duration of 6 months, secure the well so that 
contractor can monitor level during construction. Take water 
sample and complete analysis through unit rate items. 
Measure water pressure. Complete infiltration tests. Cost shall 
include all permits, traffic control, and any restoration cost. All 
investigations shall be detailed to prepare a high quality 
geotechnical, hydrogeological and GBR report and to mitigate 
water disposal and construction risks. 

8 $______/Each $ 

U25 For existing water wells constructed during EA and draft PDR 
and which are active, collect ground water samples and 
monitor level for a duration of up to 6 months. Testing as per 
unit rate items 

LS $_____________ $ 

 
Additional Soils Investigation If Required – Laboratory Chemical Testing 

U26 Analysis of soil sample – PCBs (O. Reg. 558.00) 100 $______/Each $ 
U27 Analysis of soil sample –Total VOCIs, VOCII - BTEX & PHCs, 

PCBs, Electrical Conductivity as specified in (O. Reg. 
153/511) and meeting sampling and test timeline requirements 
and any other additional soil tests suggested by the 
consultant.  

100 $______/Each $ 

U28 Standard Proctor test (ASTM D698) 100 $______/Each $ 
 Ground Water Investigation – Sampling and Laboratory 

Testing 
   

U29 Conduct ground water sampling and laboratory analysis for 
existing wells constructed during the EA and draft PDR 
(AECOM has prepared a technical recommendation with 
identifying location of existing wells) to prepare the 
hydrogeological report and GBR, and to determine discharge 
location and treatment 

LS $_____________ $ 
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Items 

# of 
Units 
(A) 

Unit Cost 
(B) 

Cost ($) 
(AxB) 

U30 Ground water sampling and laboratory analysis for new wells 
to prepare the hydrogeological report and GBR, and to 
determine discharge location and treatment 

300 $______/Each $ 

U31 Pumping Test, slug test and any other tests to accurately 
determine dewatering volumes and to prepare an exceptional 
hydrogeological report and a GBR. Including installation, 
operation, discharging, all permits and approvals to conduct 
the test. 

LS for the 
entire 
project 

$_____________ $ 

 
SUE Quality Level A - Daylighting  

U32 Mobilization, permits/approvals for SUE, traffic control, 
coordination and all other costs Reports and incorporation in to 
design for all SUE work 

1 lump 
sum 

$_____________ $ 

U33 Test pit, including use of Hydro Vacuum Truck as required, up 
to 2.0 m max depth in a soft surface including backfill with U fill 

50 $______/Each $ 

U34 Test pit, including use of Hydro Vacuum Truck as required, 
between 2.0 and 3.0 m max depth in a soft surface including 
backfill with U fill 

125 $______/Each $ 

U35 Test pit, including use of Hydro Vacuum Truck as required, 
between 3.0 and 4.0 m max depth in a soft surface including 
backfill with U fill 

60 $______/Each $ 

U36 Test pit, including use of Hydro Vacuum Truck as required, 
between 4.0 and 6.0 m max depth in a soft surface including 
backfill with U fill 

30 $______/Each $ 

U37 Additional unit cost for test pit in concrete and asphalt surface 
including restoration with high strength concrete repair mix and 
asphalt 

150 $______/Each $ 

 
I&I investigations and CCTV 

   

U38 Dye testing to trace extraneous inflow sources. Priced based 
on number of individual test locations sufficient to identify 
location as an extraneous flow source 

500 $________/Each $ 

U39 Smoke testing to find downspouts, cross connections. Price for 
smoke test including all material, labour and documenting 
results and notifications.(payment including plugging, isolating 
sewers for test and identifying issues with laterals within the 
test area). Include cost of notice preparation and distribution 

4,000 m  
________     
Per meter of 
mainline 

$ 

U40 CCTV inspection and coordinates of sewer laterals to 
determine if the sewer lateral will be in conflict with the new 
local storm sewer including coordinates, database and GIS (if 
required to confirm if laterals are in conflict. Assume inspection 
of homes on only one side of street is required).  

3.5 km 

$________/km of 
CCTV (any 
combined/ 
sanitary sewers 
in the study area) 

$ 

U41 Install, calibrate, maintain and remove flow monitor including 
data collection and providing data through web for a 12 month 
duration if required for any combined sewer within the project 
area. 

15 $________/Each $ 

U42 Additional hydraulic modeling of the system under different 
rainfall scenarios as directed by the City 

4 $________/Each $ 

U43 Pressure Meter Testing (PMT) with less than or equal to 20m 
depth, 1 set consists of 3 tests, including investigations as per 
section 2.8 and specified in Appendix A.2L.1.4. Cost to include 
all soil investigation, drilling including specialized equipment 
and process such as mud rotary drilling, testing and analysis. 
Cost shall include all permits, traffic control, disposal and 
restoration cost.  All investigations shall be detailed to prepare 
a high quality geotechnical, hydrogeological and GBR report 
and to mitigate soils disposal risk during construction. 

8 $________/Each 
Set 

$ 

U44 Pressure Meter Testing (PMT) greater than 20m and less than 
or equal to 40m depth, 1 set consists of 3 tests, including 
investigations as per section 2.8 and specified in Appendix 
A.2L.1.4. Cost to include all soil investigation, drilling including 

5 $________/Each 
Set 

$ 
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# of 
Units 
(A) 

Unit Cost 
(B) 

Cost ($) 
(AxB) 

specialized equipment and process such as mud rotary 
drilling, testing and analysis. Cost shall include all permits, 
traffic control, disposal and restoration cost.  All investigations 
shall be detailed to prepare a high quality geotechnical, 
hydrogeological and GBR report and to mitigate soils disposal 
risk during construction. 

U45 Pressure Meter Testing (PMT) greater than 40m and less than 
or equal to 55m depth, 1 set consists of 3 tests, including 
investigations as per section 2.8 and specified in Appendix 
A.2L.1.4. Cost to include all soil investigation, drilling including 
specialized equipment and process such as mud rotary 
drilling, testing and analysis. Cost shall include all permits, 
traffic control, disposal and restoration cost.  All investigations 
shall be detailed to prepare a high quality geotechnical, 
hydrogeological and GBR report and to mitigate soils disposal 
risk during construction. 

2 $________/Each 
Set 

$ 

U46 PQ Sampling, with less than or equal to 20m depth, including 
investigations as per section 2.8 and specified in Appendix 
A.2L.1.4. Cost to include all soil investigation, use of 
specialized equipment and/or process for drilling, testing and 
analysis. Cost shall include all permits, traffic control, disposal 
and restoration cost.  All investigations shall be detailed to 
prepare a high quality geotechnical, hydrogeological and GBR 
report and to mitigate soils disposal risk during construction. 

5 $________/Each $ 

U47 PQ Sampling, greater than 20m and less than or equal to 40m 
depth, including investigations as per section 2.8 and specified 
in Appendix A.2L.1.4. Cost to include all soil investigation, use 
of specialized equipment and/or process for drilling, testing 
and analysis. Cost shall include all permits, traffic control, 
disposal and restoration cost.  All investigations shall be 
detailed to prepare a high quality geotechnical, 
hydrogeological and GBR report and to mitigate soils disposal 
risk during construction. 

4 $________/Each $ 

U48 PQ Sampling, greater than 40m and less than or equal to 55m 
depth, including investigations as per section 2.8 and specified 
in Appendix A.2L.1.4. Cost to include all soil investigation, use 
of specialized equipment and/or process for drilling, testing 
and analysis. Cost shall include all permits, traffic control, 
disposal and restoration cost.  All investigations shall be 
detailed to prepare a high quality geotechnical, 
hydrogeological and GBR report and to mitigate soils disposal 
risk during construction. 

2 $________/Each $ 

U49 Tri-axial Testing, Unconsolidated Undrained (UU), including 
investigations as per section 2.8 and specified in Appendix 
A.2L.1.4. Cost to include all soil investigation, testing and 
analysis. Cost shall include all permits, traffic control, disposal 
and restoration cost.  All investigations shall be detailed to 
prepare a high quality geotechnical, hydrogeological and GBR 
report and to mitigate soils disposal risk during construction. 

7 $________/Each $ 

U50 Tri-axial Testing, Consolidated Undrained (CU), including 
investigations as per section 2.8 and specified in Appendix 
A.2L.1.4. Cost to include all soil investigation, testing and 
analysis. Cost shall include all permits, traffic control, disposal 
and restoration cost.  All investigations shall be detailed to 
prepare a high quality geotechnical, hydrogeological and GBR 
report and to mitigate soils disposal risk during construction. 

2 $________/Each $ 

U51 Tri-axial Testing, Consolidated Drained (CD), including 
investigations as per section 2.8 and specified in Appendix 
A.2L.1.4. Cost to include all soil investigation, testing and 
analysis. Cost shall include all permits, traffic control, disposal 
and restoration cost.  All investigations shall be detailed to 
prepare a high quality geotechnical, hydrogeological and GBR 

2 $________/Each $ 
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(A) 
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report and to mitigate soils disposal risk during construction. 
U52 NTNU-SINTEF Soil Abrasivity Testing, including investigations 

as per section 2.8 and specified in Appendix A.2L.1.4. Cost to 
include all soil investigation, use of specialized equipment 
and/or process, sample collection, preparation, testing and 
analysis. Cost shall include all permits, traffic control, disposal 
and restoration cost.  All investigations shall be detailed to 
prepare a high quality geotechnical, hydrogeological and GBR 
report and to mitigate soils disposal risk during construction. 

10 $________/Each $ 

Total for Table 5-2  
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